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part, employment is of a seasonal na-
ture where it is tied to a certain time 
of year by an event or pattern, such as 
a short annual growing cycle or a spe-
cific aspect of a longer cycle, and re-
quires labor levels far above those nec-
essary for ongoing operations. Employ-
ment is of a temporary nature where 
the employer’s need to fill the position 
with a temporary worker will, except 
in extraordinary circumstances, last no 
longer than 1 year. 

§ 501.4 Discrimination prohibited. 
(a) A person may not intimidate, 

threaten, restrain, coerce, blacklist, 
discharge, or in any manner discrimi-
nate against any person who has: 

(1) Filed a complaint under or related 
to 8 U.S.C. 1188 or the regulations in 
this part; 

(2) Instituted or caused to be insti-
tuted any proceedings related to 8 
U.S.C. 1188 or the regulations in this 
part; 

(3) Testified or is about to testify in 
any proceeding under or related to 8 
U.S.C. 1188 or the regulations in this 
part; 

(4) Consulted with an employee of a 
legal assistance program or an attor-
ney on matters related to 8 U.S.C. 1188, 
or to this subpart or any other Depart-
ment regulation promulgated pursuant 
to 8 U.S.C. 1188; or 

(5) Exercised or asserted on behalf of 
himself or others any right or protec-
tion afforded by 8 U.S.C. 1188 or the 
regulations in this part. 

(b) Allegations of discrimination 
against any person under paragraph (a) 
of this section will be investigated by 
the WHD. Where the WHD has deter-
mined through investigation that such 
allegations have been substantiated, 
appropriate remedies may be sought. 
The WHD may assess civil money pen-
alties, seek injunctive relief, and/or 
seek additional remedies necessary to 
make the employee whole as a result of 
the discrimination, as appropriate, ini-
tiate debarment proceedings, and rec-
ommend to OFLC revocation of any 
such violator’s current labor certifi-
cation. Complaints alleging discrimi-
nation against workers or immigrants 
based on citizenship or immigration 
status may also be forwarded by the 
WHD to the Department of Justice, 

Civil Rights Division, Office of Special 
Counsel for Immigration-Related Un-
fair Employment Practices. 

§ 501.5 Waiver of rights prohibited. 

A person may not seek to have an H– 
2A worker, a worker in corresponding 
employment, or a U.S. worker improp-
erly rejected for employment or im-
properly laid off or displaced waive any 
rights conferred under 8 U.S.C. 1188, 20 
CFR part 655, subpart B, or the regula-
tions in these parts. Any agreement by 
an employee purporting to waive or 
modify any rights given to said person 
under these provisions shall be void as 
contrary to public policy except as fol-
lows: 

(a) Waivers or modifications of rights 
or obligations hereunder in favor of the 
Secretary shall be valid for purposes of 
enforcement; and 

(b) Agreements in settlement of pri-
vate litigation are permitted. 

§ 501.6 Investigation authority of Sec-
retary. 

(a) General. The Secretary, through 
the WHD, may investigate to deter-
mine compliance with obligations 
under 8 U.S.C. 1188, 20 CFR part 655, 
subpart B, or the regulations in this 
part, either pursuant to a complaint or 
otherwise, as may be appropriate. In 
connection with such an investigation, 
WHD may enter and inspect any prem-
ises, land, property, housing, vehicles, 
and records (and make transcriptions 
thereof), question any person and gath-
er any information as may be appro-
priate. 

(b) Confidential investigation. The 
WHD shall conduct investigations in a 
manner that protects the confiden-
tiality of any complainant or other 
person who provides information to the 
Secretary in good faith. 

(c) Report of violations. Any person 
may report a violation of the obliga-
tions imposed by 8 U.S.C. 1188, 20 CFR 
part 655, subpart B, or the regulations 
in this part to the Secretary by advis-
ing any local office of the SWA, ETA, 
WHD or any other authorized rep-
resentative of the Secretary. The office 
or person receiving such a report shall 
refer it to the appropriate office of 
WHD for the geographic area in which 
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the reported violation is alleged to 
have occurred. 

§ 501.7 Cooperation with Federal offi-
cials. 

All persons must cooperate with any 
Federal officials assigned to perform 
an investigation, inspection, or law en-
forcement function pursuant to 8 
U.S.C. 1188 and the regulations in this 
part during the performance of such 
duties. The WHD will take such action 
as it deems appropriate, including ini-
tiating debarment proceedings, seeking 
an injunction to bar any failure to co-
operate with an investigation and/or 
assessing a civil money penalty there-
for. In addition, the WHD will report 
the matter to OFLC, and may rec-
ommend to OFLC that the person’s ex-
isting labor certification be revoked. In 
addition, Federal statutes prohibiting 
persons from interfering with a Federal 
officer in the course of official duties 
are found at 18 U.S.C. 111 and 18 U.S.C. 
114. 

§ 501.8 Accuracy of information, state-
ments, data. 

Information, statements and data 
submitted in compliance with 8 U.S.C. 
1188 or the regulations in this part are 
subject to 18 U.S.C. 1001, which pro-
vides, with regard to statements or en-
tries generally, that whoever, in any 
matter within the jurisdiction of any 
department or agency of the U.S., 
knowingly and willfully falsifies, con-
ceals, or covers up a material fact by 
any trick, scheme, or device, or makes 
any false, fictitious, or fraudulent 
statements or representations, or 
makes or uses any false writing or doc-
ument knowing the same to contain 
any false, fictitious, or fraudulent 
statement or entry, shall be fined not 
more than $10,000 or imprisoned not 
more than 5 years, or both. 

§ 501.9 Surety bond. 
(a) Every H–2ALC must obtain a sur-

ety bond demonstrating its ability to 
discharge financial obligations under 
the H–2A program. The original bond 
instrument issued by the surety must 
be submitted with the Application for 
Temporary Employment Certification. At 
a minimum, the bond instrument must 
identify the name, address, phone num-

ber, and contact person for the surety, 
and specify the amount of the bond (as 
required in paragraph (c) of this sec-
tion), the date of issuance and expira-
tion and any identifying designation 
used by the surety for the bond. 

(b) The bond must be payable to the 
Administrator, Wage and Hour Divi-
sion, United States Department of 
Labor, 200 Constitution Avenue, NW., 
Room S–3502, Washington, DC 20210. 
The bond must obligate the surety to 
pay any sums to the WHD Adminis-
trator for wages and benefits owed to 
an H–2A worker or to a worker engaged 
in corresponding employment, or to a 
U.S. worker improperly rejected or im-
properly laid off or displaced, based on 
a final decision finding a violation or 
violations of this part or 20 CFR part 
655, subpart B relating to the labor cer-
tification the bond is intended to 
cover. The aggregate liability of the 
surety shall not exceed the face 
amount of the bond. The bond must be 
written to cover liability incurred dur-
ing the term of the period listed in the 
Application for Temporary Employment 
Certification for labor certification 
made by an H–2ALC, and shall be 
amended to cover any extensions of the 
labor certification requested by an H– 
2ALC. 

(c) The bond must be in the amount 
of $5,000 for a labor certification for 
which an H–2ALC will employ fewer 
than 25 workers; $10,000 for a labor cer-
tification for which an H–2ALC will 
employ 25 to 49 workers; $20,000 for a 
labor certification for which an H– 
2ALC will employ 50 to 74 workers; 
$50,000 for a labor certification for 
which an H–2ALC will employ 75 to 99 
workers; and $75,000 for a labor certifi-
cation for which an H–2ALC will em-
ploy 100 or more workers. The WHD 
Administrator may require that an H– 
2ALC obtain a bond with a higher face 
value amount after notice and oppor-
tunity for hearing when it is shown 
based on objective criteria that the 
amount of the bond is insufficient to 
meet potential liabilities. 

(d) The bond must remain in force for 
a period of no less than 2 years from 
the date on which the labor certifi-
cation expires. If the WHD has com-
menced any enforcement action under 
the regulations in this part against an 
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